From:
To:
Cc:
Subject: VPI Immingham - BEIS consultation - P66 response [BURGES-WORK.FID9679692]
Date: 26 June 2020 14:26:28

Attachments:

Dear PINS and BEIS

We write with reference to BEIS’ letter of 10 June on behalf of Phillips 66 Limited (“P66”), in which
you requested an update on the status of negotiations relating to compulsory acquisition and property
agreements concerning VPI Immingham'’s application for development consent.

It is our understanding from the applicant that its discussions with its lenders are continuing, but that
their consent is yet to be obtained to enable the completion of the property agreements and
compromise agreements between the applicant and P66.

P66’s position therefore remains as outlined in its post-examination submissions to the ExA on 22
April 2020. We trust you have a copy of those submissions, but in case you do not we attach them
again for your reference.

We also note that the applicant is continuing to engage with P66 to identify whether there is an
alternative mechanism which would enable the completion of the compromise agreement prior to the

question of lender consent being resolved. We expect the applicant will address that in its update to
you.

Kind regards

Alex

Alex Minhinick
Director
Burges Salmon LLP

T: +44 (0) 117 307 6874

F: +44 (0) 117 378 6124

Legal Team PA (Mon/Tues/Weds): Kia Jarrett
T: +44 (0) 117 307 6260

Legal Team PA (Thurs/Fri): Su Hunt
T: +44 (0) 117 307 6250

www.burges-salmon.com
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This email (and any attachment) is intended solely for the addressee, is confidential and may be legally privileged. If you have
received this email in error, please send it back to us immediately and delete it without reading, copying or disseminating it.

This email is being sent to you on behalf of one or more of the following entities with registered offices at One Glass Wharf, Bristol,
BS2 0ZX, all of which (apart from Burges Salmon Company Limited) are authorised and regulated by the Solicitors Regulation
Authority: Burges Salmon LLP, a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales (LLP number OC307212); Burges
Salmon Company Limited, a company registered in England and Wales (number 07556770); BS Pensions Trustees Limited, a
company registered in England and Wales (number 2682277); and/or on behalf of Burges Salmon (Northern Ireland) Limited, a
company registered in Northern Ireland (number N1611307) which is authorised and regulated by the Law Society of Northern
Ireland and with a registered office at Forsyth House, Cromac Square, Belfast, Northern Ireland, BT2 8LA. Burges Salmon LLP is
also regulated by the Law Society of Scotland.

A list of the members and directors of the above entities may be inspected at the relevant registered office and also at Burges
Salmon LLP, One Glass Wharf, Bristol, BS2 0ZX Tel: +44 (0)117 939 2000 Fax:+44 (0)117 902 4400 https://www.burges-
salmon.com. Further information about Burges Salmon entities, including details of their regulators, is set out in the “Who we are”
section of the Burges Salmon website at https://www.burges-salmon.com.

For information about how we handle any personal data we collect about you, please see our Privacy Policy on the website
https://www.burges-salmon.com/privacy-policy/.
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INTRODUCTION

This post-examination submission is a summary of the case of Phillips 66 Limited ("P66")
to the Secretary of State ("S0S") in respect of VPl Immingham B's application for the VPI
Immingham OCGT DCO, reference EN010097.

This submission is made with reference to the joint statement between the Applicant and
P66 which was provided to the Examining Authority (“ExA”) at Deadline 7 on 6 February
2020 [REP7-011] and previous submissions made by P66. Events expected by that joint
statement have not occurred which compels P66 to update its position.

All terms used within this document are as defined in the Applicant's Application
Documents, and P66's previous submissions, unless otherwise stated.

JOINT STATEMENT AND CURRENT POSITION

The joint statement provided to the ExA at Deadline 7 [REP7-011] explains that the parties
intend to enter into agreements and have agreed the form of these contracts. These
agreements comprise the documents required to enable the Applicant to acquire from P66
the interests in land it requires to construct and operate the Project, as well as a
Compromise Agreement to provide for other relevant matters.

As these agreements will provide for variations to existing leases held by VPI Immingham
LLP we have been informed that the consent of its lender is required. On the assumption
this would be readily obtainable by the Applicant, P66 supported the parties’ joint intention
to execute and complete the agreements as soon as lender consent has been obtained
by VPl Immingham LLP.

However, Lender consent has not yet been obtained by VPI Immingham LLP. P66 has
sought updates on when that consent will be available. No firm date has emerged and
the determination period has now extended well beyond the point by which P66 had
assumed that consent could reasonably have been obtained, if indeed it is to be
forthcoming.

The position is therefore that the Applicant seeks to acquire rights from P66 which P66
has agreed to grant to it voluntarily. Inthese circumstances it is axiomatic that that powers
of compulsory acquisition cannot be granted'. To do so would be unlawful. That is
reflected in DCLG’s guidance on the use of such powers?:

“Applicants should seek to acquire land by negotiation wherever practicable. As a general
rule, authority to acquire land compulsorily should only be sought as part of an order
granting development consent if attempts to acquire by agreement fail...”

The only obstacle to the completion of the voluntary acquisition of the rights the Applicant
seeks to acquire is the Applicant’s relationship with its group company’s lender. That is
not a matter for which P66 should be penalised. If the Applicant has failed to identify the
correct subject of its application for compulsory powers, in this case its lender, it cannot
fairly seek to transfer that burden onto P66.

' See for example the consideration of that situation arising at paragraph 11 of R. (FCC Environment) v SSECC [2015]
EWCA Civ 55, Env L.R.22.
2 Planning Act 2008: Guidance related to procedures for the compulsory acquisition of land, paragraph [25]
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The Applicant and P66 have been in regular discussions on the proposed project since
March 2018 with negotiations taking place through meetings and email correspondence.
The agreements to acquire the P66 land interests started to resemble their agreed form
in September 2019. Despite the importance of P66 land interests to the project and these
negotiations continuing for many months, it is unfortunate that the process for obtaining
lender consent was only started by the Applicant in February 2020 when the joint
statement was provided to the ExA at Deadline 7 [REP7-011].

The previous joint statement envisaged that lender consent would be forthcoming prior to
any decision being taken on the Applicant’s Application. It would now appear that consent
may not be forthcoming, and accordingly P66 seeks to make its position clear in the
absence of that consent.

That position is the one P66 position is set out in previous submission to the ExA. Those
submissions are summarised below for ease of reference.

P66’S OBJECTION TO COMPULSORY ACQUISITION

P66’s case is that the Applicant has failed to demonstrate that there is a compelling case
in the public interest for the compulsory acquisition of P66’s land. Accordingly any
provisions of the dDCO which would authorise compulsory acquisition ought to be
modified to prevent such acquisition.

The reasons why the statutory tests are not met are set out in detail within P66’s
submission at Deadline 2 on 11 September 2019 [REP2-024]. In brief however, the
proposed DCO would result in a series of adverse impacts on P66’s business at the
Humber Oil Refinery. When weighed against the public benefits of the Applicant’s
proposals, there is not a compelling case in the public interest.

P66 does not object to the grant of DCO per se. However, if the ExA removes the powers
of compulsory acquisition over P66’s land, it will need to consider whether the Applicant
is able to demonstrate a reasonable prospect of its scheme being delivered.

Suggested amendments to the dDCO which the SoS ought to consider in the event he or
she is minded to grant the dDCO, but remove powers of compulsory acquisition of P66’s
land are included in Appendix One to P66’s submission at Deadline 6a on 23 January
2020 [REP6a-007].

PROTECTIVE PROVISIONS - EXISTING PIPELINE SITE AND EXISTING VPI CHP
SITE

P66’s case is that the rights sought by the Applicant over:
(a) the Existing Pipeline Site (Plots 33, 39 to 40 and 42 to 58); and
(b) the Existing VPI CHP Site (Plots 7 to 16, 18 to 32 and 34 to 38),

are not justified, and do not meet the test of a compelling case in the public interest under
s.122 of the Act.

However, in the event the SoS is minded to grant those rights to the Applicant, he or she
must consider when doing so what form appropriate protective provisions ought to be in
to regulate those rights.

P66 have proposed amendments to the drafting of these protective provisions in Appendix
Two and Three of P66’s submission at Deadline 6a on 23 January 2020 [REP6a-007].

This drafting offered by P66 should not be construed as agreement to these protective
provisions. P66 submits even this drafting is not adequate to allow the rights of compulsory
sought by the Applicant to be confirmed.
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Further detail and the rationale for these drafting amendments are included in paragraphs
3 and 4 of P66’s Deadline 6a submission [REP6a-007] and in paragraph 3 of P66’s
Deadline 6 submission on 2 January 2020 [REP6-009].

PROTECTIVE PROVISIONS - HYDROCARBON PIPELINES CROSSING

P66 and the Applicant have agreed the terms of the protective provisions which ought to
be included in the dDCO for the protection of 3 hydrocarbon pipelines operated by P66
within the Order Limits and over which the Applicant proposes crossing works for the
service connections (gas, electricity, and other utilities) of its proposed OCGT plant. Those
pipelines are situated within plot 17 of the Land Plans.

These protective provisions are contained at paragraphs 36 to 50 of Part 4 of Schedule 9
to the dDCO [REP5-003]. Some minor drafting amendments are suggested by P66 to
refine the operation of these provisions. The amendments and the rationale for the
changes can be found in paragraph 5.3 of P66’s Deadline 6a submission [REP6a-007].

Further detail of P66’s position on these protective provisions is contained in paragraph 2
of P66’s Deadline 6 submission [REP6-009].

Notwithstanding these amended provisions, P66 continues to object to the principle of
compulsory acquisition of the rights necessary for these works to be carried out.

CONCLUSION

P66 objects to the exercise of compulsory acquisition powers against its land. Even with
the proposed amendments, the protective provisions do not comprise appropriate
safeguards.

Powers of compulsory acquisition under a DCO should only be sought where attempts to
acquire by agreement fail. Given that negotiations were successful and agreements were
reached subject to lender consent, compulsory acquisition powers cannot lawfully be
included within the DCO.

Should there be any residual doubt, for the reasons advanced by P66 during the
examination of the dDCO, there is no compelling case in the public interest for the
acquisition of its rights. The Applicant’s proposal fails to meet the test in s.122 of the Act.

Burges Salmon LLP on behalf of Phillips 66 Limited

22 April 2020



1 Victoria Street Email: beiseip@beis.qgov.uk

London Web: www.gov.uk/beis
SW1H OET
To: Your Ref:

Our Ref: EN010097
VPI Immingham B Ltd
Cadent Gas Limited
Defence Infrastructure Organisation
Hornsea 1 Limited
Network Rail Infrastructure Limited
Optimus Wind, Breesea, Sonningmay Wind, and
Soundmark Wind Limited (“the Hornsea 2 Companies”)
Phillips 66 Limited
Total Lindsey Oil Refinery Limited
cc:
Date: 10 June 2020

Dear Sir or Madam,

Planning Act 2008 and The Infrastructure Planning (Examination Procedure)

Rules 2010

Application by VPI Immingham B Ltd (“the Applicant”) for an Order granting
Development Consent for the proposed VPl Immingham Open Cycle Gas
Turbine (“OCGT”) Power Station and associated infrastructure (“the proposed

Development”)

REQUEST FOR INFORMATION

1. Following the completion of the Examination on 8 February 2020, the Examining
Authority submitted a Report and Recommendation in respect of its findings and
conclusions on the above application to the Secretary of State on 7 May 2020. In
accordance with section 107 of the Planning Act 2008, the Secretary of State has

three months to determine the application.

2. There are issues on which the Secretary of State would be grateful if the parties
identified in bold could provide any updates or information as appropriate.
Additional comments from any interested parties on these points only will also be

considered.



Compulsory Acquisition and Outstanding Aqreements at the close of

Examination

The Secretary of State notes that at the close of Examination some objections had not
been withdrawn or agreements were still outstanding between the Applicant and a
number of parties. The Secretary of State requests the following parties provide him
with an update on the status of negotiations:

e The Applicant and Cadent Gas Limited in respect to protective provisions for
compulsory acquisition;

e the Applicant and Hornsea 1 Limited in respect to protective provisions for
compulsory acquisition and a crossing agreement;

e the Applicant and Optimus Wind, Breesea, Sonningmay Wind and
Soundmark Wind Limited (The Hornsea 2 Companies) in respect to
protective provisions for compulsory acquisition and a crossing agreement;

e the Applicant and Total Lindsey Oil Refinery Limited in regard to protective
provisions for compulsory acquisition;

e the Applicant and Network Rail Infrastructure Limited in regard to
compulsory acquisition and property agreements; and

e the Applicant and Phillips 66 Limited in regard to compulsory acquisition and
property agreements.

Defence Infrastructure Organisation Safeguarding

3.

The Secretary of State notes that the Defence Infrastructure Organisation (“DIO”)
raised air safety concerns during the Examination, and requested the stack be
fitted with aviation warning lights. The DIO also requested that a requirement was
included in the DCO covering the provision of information regarding safety. The
DIO was asked in both the Written and Further Written Examining Authority’s
Questions (Q1.10.1 and Q2.5.1) to expand on the justification for its request. The
Secretary of State notes that the DIO did not respond. The Secretary of State
therefore requests the DIO provides justification to him as to why aviation warning
lights or other requirements in respect of safety are necessary.

Responses are requested by 23.59 on 26 June 2020.

Due to COVID-19, responses on the information requested above should be
submitted by email only to: ImminghamOCGT @planninginspectorate.gov.uk.

Responses will be published on the VPI Immingham OCGT project page of the
National Infrastructure Planning website:
https://infrastructure.planninginspectorate.gov.uk/projects/north-east/vpi-
immingham-ocgt/ as soon as possible after 26 June 2020.

This letter is without prejudice to the Secretary of State’s consideration of whether
to grant or withhold development consent for the VPI Immingham OCGT Power



Station. Nothing in this letter is to be taken to imply what the eventual decision
might be or what final conclusions the Secretary of State may reach on any
particular issue which is relevant to the determination of the application.

Yours faithfully

Gareth Leigh

Head of Energy Infrastructure Planning





